

**Sunset City Corporation**  
**City Council Minutes**  
**May 16, 2023**  
**Page 1 of 9**

Minutes of a regular meeting held May 16, 2023 at Sunset City Hall, 200 West 1300 North, Sunset, Utah; Mayor D Howard Madsen presiding.

**REGULAR SESSION**

**Mayor and Council Present:**

D Howard Madsen	Mayor
Chad Bangerter	Council Member
Beverly Macfarlane	Council Member
Nancy Smalling	Council Member
Nakisha Rigley	Council Member (Arrived late 6:33pm)
Scott Wiggill	Council Member

**City Employees Present:**

Nicole Supp	City Recorder
Jason Monroe	Public Works Director
Brett Jamison	Police Chief

**Others Present:**

Hope Thompson	Sunset Resident
Allen Walters	Gigi's Playhouse
Emmie Walters	Gigi's Playhouse
J Chrisman	Gigi's Playhouse
Thomas Hamby	Gigi's Playhouse
Lance Zobell	Rouge Souls

**Excused:**

Linda J. Youngdell	Treasurer/Office Manager
--------------------	--------------------------

The regular session was called to order at 6:31 p.m. by Mayor Madsen.

Council Member Bangerter gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

**Approval of Minutes:** Council Member Wiggill made a motion to approve the meeting minutes for April 18, 2023 as written. Council Member Macfarlane seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously with Council Members Bangerter, Macfarlane, Rigley, Smalling and Wiggill voting yes.

**Public Comments:** There were none.

- 1. Discuss and Approve Nonprofit Gigi's Playhouse to Host Special Event at Central Park:** Lance Zobell was representing Rouge Souls Motorcycle Club, a probational chapter looking to do a service project to raise money for Gigi's Playhouse. They would like to do a motorcycle ride/poker ride. Mayor Madsen asked if it was going to be in Sunset. Mr. Zobell said the ride would end in Sunset. Council Member Bangerter asked for more information about the motorcycle club. Mr. Zobell informed Council the club was founded in 2017 in Utah; they are a law abiding biker club. The club is sponsored by the AMA which is a rarity for a club; most clubs are given a blessing from the CoC (Coalition of Clubs) choosing to go

with the AMA has proven to be a harder route because some of the clubs in the CoC are less accepting of their club. When motorcycle clubs were becoming a thing the AMA sponsored all of them, a section of clubs decided they did not like the direction the AMA was going so they broke off from them and became the 1%. Council Member Bangerter asked how many members were in the club. Mr. Zobell said their group has four chapters in Utah; Utah county, Toole county, the mother chapter which consists of – original members and Weber/Davis county. Mr. Zobell is the president of the chapter. Mr. Zobell turned the time over to Thomas Hamby (Tom) who is the Sargent in Arms and is spearheading this project. Mr. Hamby conveyed to Council this project was important to them because Gigi's Playhouse approached them and asked if they would put on the poker run; they did not know how big the poker run would be but it has been getting bigger and they no longer have the space to facilitate it at their original location. The run will start at Gigi's Playhouse in Layton go up through Morgan, stop in Eden and Farr West, meet at the Harley store in Riverdale and then they are hoping to end in Sunset at Central Park. They want to bring a sense of community to our little area and erase the stigmatism that all guys in leather with dreads riding a motorcycle are bad – they stand for brotherhood, family and caring for the community. The club as a whole participates in a lot of community projects. He asked Council to use the space in Central Park to host the event; they are looking to have food trucks, bounce house, vendors, projection of around 300 bikes and a free concert put on by American Hitman and three other smaller bands; one of them being Whiskey and Rhinestones. They would like everyone to come out and enjoy an all age's event. Council Member Macfarlane asked since it is a fundraiser what are the funds going towards. Mr. Hamby stated all funds will go to Gigi's Playhouse. He informed Council the foundation provides services to those who have Down syndrome from prenatal all the way through adulthood. All the money raised from the riders and raffles will be given to Gigi's Playhouse. Council Member Rigley asked if the Council could meet Emmee. Allen Walters and his daughter Emmee Walters spoke in regards to what Gigi's Playhouse is all about. Mr. Walters stated seven years ago his family established the first Gigi's playhouse in Utah. It cost his family \$15,000; it is the only one here so far. It is 100% nonprofit to provide benefits and resources to people with Down syndrome. Council Member Macfarlane asked how it is determined who gets the funds and what is it spent on. Mr. Walter said the money goes to fund the programs and classes or items the individuals may need. Mr. Walters shared the facility resides in Layton, there the children or adults with Down Syndrome can go and participate in classes, schooling, jobs, etc. Council Member Wiggill asked if it was Central Park they wanted to use and they replied yes. Council Member Rigley asked Emmee what her favorite part of the event was and she voiced art, she likes to draw and anything that goes fast. Council Member Bangerter asked if this concept has already been run through Administration. Recorder Supp stated she has checked availability for the park and needs to confirm if the 1-2 day event license will work for this situation. Council Member Bangerter shared the concern with hosting a large event is how much man power will it take from the City and what will that cost. He said he is all for the event but they need to work it out with Public Works and Police. Mr. Zobell informed Council they want to have no negative impact on the City and will have many volunteers to cover the trash, clean up and they have friends who are in law enforcement. All Council agreed as long as they meet the requirements from Police, Public Works and Administration.

- 2. Consider Resolution 2023-06 Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with Davis County for Dispatch Services:** Police Chief Jamison informed Council this is a yearly agreement for contracting dispatch emergency services with Davis County. The County has upped their price by \$1,200. On October 2<sup>nd</sup> the Clearfield Dispatch will be closing their facility and merging with Layton City. Chief Jamison foresees changes in the future where they may want to consider also merging with Layton but it would need to be a joint merge with all the

cities. Council Member Macfarlane asked what the \$1,200 is for. Chief Jamison said that is the additional cost for their services. She voiced her concerns with dispatch and why the emergency vehicles don't talk to each other. When one is dispatched they all come. Council Member Smalling advised it is called mutual aid that is agreed upon with the fire districts to help one another if they need. It is a safety backup for cities.

Council Member Macfarlane made a motion to approve Resolution 2023-06. Council Member Smalling seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously with Council Members Bangerter, Macfarlane, Rigley, Smalling and Wiggill voting yes.

**3. Mayor, Council and Department Head Reports:** Mayor Madsen announced there were two applicants for the City Treasurer position and it has been a very tight vote. The City made a job offer to one and they declined, their current job had given them an offer they could not refuse. We are going to have a second interview for the other applicant on Thursday. Mayor Madsen mentioned attending the ULCT Conference in St. George and they shared some really good information with him. He also saw a really cool sewer truck and sent a picture of it to Director Monroe.

Council Member Smalling reminded Council the dedication of the Veterans Memorial Park is on Saturday. They removed the grass in the overhang areas and replaced it with bark and it is looking nice. Director Monroe informed Council there was a water leak so they were not able to finish today but he will have the park in pristine condition. Council Member Smalling noted the actual event will not be too long but she asked Public Works if they can set up some chairs by the flag poles for the Veterans. She has a wreath being made and the water feature will be on. The company who did the rocks was supposed to get the main flag up already but Director Monroe said it was supposed to be last night, so hopefully soon.

Council Member Bangerter indicated the entrance to the west side of City hall still has a sharp edge drop-off and is wondering if the Developer for the 1300 N townhomes is going to fix it like they were supposed to or if the City needs to take care of it. Director Monroe stated the Developer should be taking care of it; he knows they are supposed to be having a meeting with the Mayor. Mayor Madsen commented the Developer wants the City to help pitch in to pay for a wall. Council Member Bangerter asked why it can't be angled instead of having a wall. Director Monroe informed Council his mowers cannot mow on an angle like that. Council Member Bangerter said it needs to be roped off or fixed so no one gets hurt. He reported his water was shut off today, he asked Director Monroe if it was an emergency shut off. Director Monroe expressed it was an emergency because the top of the valve blew off. Council Member Bangerter voiced he should be contacting business owners to let them know the water would be off because he had a business owner call him who could not continue his work without water so it would have been nice if the City could call business owners to let them know what was happening. Mayor Madsen said Public Works went into the situation with the thought of it being a smaller issue then when it blows up in your face there is not enough time in the moment to call each person. He agreed if there was time to call that would be nice. Council Member Bangerter advised with the City owned properties economic development is moving along and will be discussed further in the closed session.

Council Member Macfarlane brought up water conservation. She said she has received a lot of calls in regards to conserving. The residents are requesting education items be put on the website. Clover, native plants and mowing the grass less frequently use less water. One resident informed her putting Weed & Feed directly on the lawn kills microorganisms and makes it less resilient. Another resident told her if you water 1 inch every 3-4 days you will

be conserving water. Council Member Macfarlane said most people do not know about some of these resources and it would be nice for us to educate residents on what a lawn should be; which isn't always a neat and tidy bed of grass. She said she will try to get some educational guides to put on the website. She would also like to see the information in the newsletter; she is going to try at every Council meeting to introduce and education more on landscaping and water conservation. She asked for everyone to pass the word on to those around them. The JustServe organization has offered to help with City cleanup so if Public Works needs extra help they are willing to come they just need to be told. The Senior Center had a Hawaiian Luau with lots of food and games. On May 12<sup>th</sup> they will be hosting a Mother's Day brunch. They offer line dancing, computer support groups, transportation and lots of other services. Lastly, Council Member Macfarlane wished all of the Mother's in the City a Happy Mother's Day.

Council Member Wiggill announced the North Davis Fire District has all the floors poured on their new facility and you will soon see the walls being raised. The construction is back on schedule after the weather and supply delays. The temporary fire station has served them well so far. He remarked on the new fire truck as being recognized in a national magazine as a sale demonstration, which was a very exciting experience. As of this year, North Davis Fire has responded to 1,466 calls as of 4pm today. 1,242 were EMS calls and 224 were fire calls. Since January 192 of those calls were for Sunset; 173 EMS and 19 fire. As of last month, 42 of those were EMS and 1 were fire. The fire district continues to be busy and working hard. Kudos to the Fire District and Police Department for the work they do to keep everyone safe. The Fire District has been working hard on their budgets; kudos to them as well as Treasurer/Office Manager Youngdell and Recorder Supp for preparing our City budget.

Mayor Madsen excused Treasurer/Office Manager Youngdell from the meeting tonight.

Council Member Rigley shared the Youth Council have chosen to do a service project on May 27<sup>th</sup> by hosting a clothing drive in front of the City building. Big Brothers, Big Sisters will be bringing bins and will pick them up at the end of the clothing drive. They will do it for a few hours where residents can come and bring their gently used clothing to help others. Council Member Rigley thanked Treasurer/Office Manager Youngdell for printing some of the flyers and putting them at the Counter and Recorder Supp for putting the flyer on the website. Council Member Macfarlane asked if she listed the service project with JustServe. Council Member Rigley replied she emailed them to have it listed but has not heard back yet. Mayor Madsen informed there needs to be a flyer sent out for Fun Days. Director Monroe said we need to get through the Work Session tonight to get a schedule out. Council Member Rigley said she will share the flyer once we get one put together.

Police Chief Jamison reported the Police Department is 1100 case logs more than a year ago. Now that the weather is warming up those numbers will increase over the next couple of weeks. He has had a few officers off with some medical leave and he is back to being fully staffed and everything is running smooth. Chief Jamison noted he heard on KSL before coming to the meeting there had been an industrial accident and a 38 year old, Male from Sunset has passed. He said he will find out more information. Council Member Bangerter asked what Chief Jamison's thought process was for the detective position. Chief Jamison said he didn't have an answer at the moment; he was hoping for the 10<sup>th</sup> officer so he could bump someone else to help with the detective case load but he is going to figure out a way to make things work and will have the Sargent now assist the Detective when he can. Council Member Macfarlane asked if the Lieutenant was Bruce Arbogast and if he was doing the work. Chief Jamison said yes, he has a lot of cases and the sex cases take priority. Just this year he has had 40-50 sex cases. Currently, he has the officers handling as much as they

possibly can on these cases so when they get to Lieutenant Arbogast a follow up has already been made. Chief Jamison said in the near future this will need to be discussed because the way he looks at it is someone is still a victim whether it be a sex case, theft case, domestic case or any other kind of case and they deserve justice. Council Member Macfarlane asked if the car dealership on Main Street by Top Hat had been taken care of. Chief Jamison reported they are 100% compliant. They had the proper amount of cars, stalls, painted lines, etc.

Mayor Madsen expressed his appreciation for the Police Officers and Public Works staff for doing a good job. He said he has been driving around the City and he always sees them working. He gave kudos to Director Monroe for how nice the Veterans Park looks.

Public Works Director Monroe notified Council his items will be discussed in the Work Session. Mayor Madsen wanted it on record how great Director Monroe did with beautification of the Veterans Park. He reported he took the grass out of the side parts of the park and put bark in. He feels it looks more cohesive and wants everyone to take notice of how nice it looks; great job, Director Monroe.

Council Member Macfarlane asked if we could put something out for the voucher program. Recorder Supp confirmed the information for the voucher program is on the website. She reported a lot of calls have been coming in through Administration in regards to the dumpsters the City used to loan out and when they are informed we no longer loan the dumpsters they are also being notified of the voucher program at that time.

Mayor Madsen called for a 5 minute break before going into the work session.

Council Member Bangerter made a motion to move into the work session after a short break. Council Member Macfarlane seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously with Council Members Bangerter, Macfarlane, Rigley, Smalling and Wiggill voting yes.

### **WORK SESSION** (Started at 7:47pm)

- 1. Discuss Fun Days Preparations:** Mayor Madsen strongly suggested a flyer being put out as soon as possible. Both Council Member Rigley and Director Monroe stated they will get one done after tonight's meeting. Council Member Wiggill asked if it was possible for the fireworks to be shot off from the parking lot down from the baseball diamond at Sunset Jr. High. He wondered if there would be enough distance if it was moved down; he meant to do some measuring himself but did not get to do that before the meeting. Council Member Bangerter thought it would not be enough room. Director Monroe said he feels like it still would not be enough room because you would now be 200 feet away from a building. Council Member Wiggill reiterated and said he meant to do the measuring but thought it could be possible. Director Monroe said you need 300 feet away from a building. Director Monroe showed a video clip of a laser light show that Council Members Bangerter and Rigley had brought to his attention. With the construction and losing part of the Park we need to look at a future of possibly not having fireworks. Council Member Macfarlane asked where the laser light show would be at, Director Monroe said Central Park. She asked for more of an explanation of what a laser light show is. Director Monroe said they put smoke out which is safe, set up computer equipment under the canopy and it's like a big concert with music and lights. Council Member Bangerter said this is professional music and he

would be shocked if you weren't impressed by a laser light show. Council Member Smalling said this will be a safer option than fireworks. Council Member Wiggill asked if the show could stay patriotic. Council Member Macfarlane asked if it was less expensive. Director Monroe asked if at least three members were on board. Council Member Wiggill said he was hoping to find an alternative. Director Monroe informed he has tried to find somewhere and has measured everywhere possible with no luck. Council Member Bangerter, Rigley and Smalling were for the laser light show. Mayor Madsen said go for it because three Council Members were on board. Director Monroe asked when they wanted to do the car show. Council Member Bangerter said he wanted to do the car show on Friday night at John G. White Park. Council Member Wiggill asked why he wanted to move it to Friday. Council Member Rigley said she was concerned about split attendance. Council Member Bangerter said Saturday during the day is tough to get people to because of the heat, he thought doing it in the evening on Friday would make for a nice atmosphere, it wouldn't be too hot and it would be nice to switch it up. Council Member Rigley suggested Saturday evening for the event. Council Member Bangerter said it was an option to try out on Friday for a few hours then have an award ceremony at 9pm. He thought combining it with the Skate competition would be nice. Council Member Macfarlane suggested having it at Central Park like usual. Council Member Rigley expressed her concern with split attendance once again. Council Member Wiggill asked if they will still be having a movie in the park on Saturday night. Director Monroe said yes. Council Member Bangerter said he would like to try a Friday night car show to see how it goes. He said once he is not on Council someone else will have to figure it out or have a car club do the car show. If a car club doesn't do it then the car show will be put on Public Works and all of our departments who are already pushed to their limits. Council Member Rigley asked if the vendors who signed up should plan on Friday and Saturday in the park or just one day. Director Monroe said both days. Council Member Smalling said she feels it would be good to combine the skate competition and the car show because the skate competition sometimes get forgotten at the park by itself and if it doesn't work out it can always be changed back for next year. Council Member Rigley asked if the car show people would be willing to come back the next day for the parade. Council Member Macfarlane articulated she does not want to change it up and prefers the car show at Central Park. She reminded Council some of the car people show up at the last minute and would not know what to do if we moved it, if we start changing things it could be a disaster. Council Member Smalling expressed change is a good thing. Council Member Rigley said she feels it could go either way at this point. Mayor Madsen said he feels it would be best at Central Park. Council Member Bangerter suggested a smaller car show on Friday and the normal one on Saturday. He said a car cruise on Friday and the car show on Saturday; the awards will be given out on Saturday. Mayor Madsen liked his idea of having two shows. Council Member Wiggill said he will support Council Member Bangerter in his decisions. All Council Members agreed. Director Monroe shared he has been in contact with Marni from Bark in the Park and she won't be able to do it this year but will be happy to do it next year. Council Member Rigley informed 18 vendors have signed up so far. All Council thanked Director Monroe for his efforts on Fun Days.

- 2. Discuss FY23 Budget Amendments and FY24 Requests:** Recorder Supp went over the changes on the FY23 budget first. She said she added \$540 to Audit and Accounting because the auditor came to help go over the monies for the General Fund. The Judge's wages were upped as discussed last meeting. Insurance and Surety Bonds was upped \$8,000 because we have some people using unemployment. Council Member Macfarlane said the numbers for the employee increase were not broken down for each of the percentages - 4%, 5% and 6%. Council Member Rigley said she thought it was already decided to go with 6%. Record Supp stated Treasurer/Office Manager Youngdell provided those figures in the last budget meeting and Council decided on 6%. Those were the only changes made to FY23 budgets. She asked if anyone had any questions or changes. She notified as we get closer to adopting the budget the numbers will change slightly as the budget tightens up. As the budget sits we are at 20.9% of State Statute. Council Member Macfarlane asked where the money from the well is. Director Monroe stated the City doesn't get money for the well; the City gets a \$15,000 discount on our bill from Weber Basin. Council Member Macfarlane said it doesn't show we get the discount and Director Monroe said because they don't give us money they take it off the bill. Council Member Macfarlane asked how we will tell the residents. Director Monroe said if they want to know they would be at the meetings. Council Member Wiggill stated he has had a chance to review the budget and understands there will be minor changes but he is 100% in favor of moving forward with the budget. He appreciated all of Recorder Supp's hard work on the budget. Recorder Supp went on to the FY24 budget and notified Council the 6% employee COLA has been updated on all of the different funds, the garbage collection has been update to reflect the new costs from the RFP. Dispatch fees were changed to reflect the agreement signed tonight. Director Monroe explained the storm sewer on 1300 North needs to be replaced by Weber Basin. Long ago when it was put in they did not do it correctly and Director Monroe does not want to have the old pipe put under the brand new road and the total of the Supplies and Expense account in the Storm Sewer fund was upped by \$60,000. Director Monroe is hoping it does not cost that much but has prepared for the worst. UDOT has all of their storm drain boxes and they are expecting Sunset to take care of their pipes once it leaves their roads. Director Monroe plans to have it all checked out with the cameras on 2300 North, 2400 North, 1800 North, 1300 North and 800 North will be scoped to make sure they are in good condition and in order. There is no agreement just yet but there will be. If it is not in good condition he will recommend to the Council to have UDOT upgrade to the standards before signing any agreements. Director Monroe also found out MIDA will not be taking care of the sidewalks that will be built on the new overpass on 1800 North and neither will UDOT; so that means the City will have to take care of it. Council Member Macfarlane asked if UDOT will take care of their own boxes. Director Monroe said they will take care of their boxed but once the water leaves the pipe it will be the City's responsibility. Recorder Supp finished up by notifying Council the budget is at 23.2% of the State Statute. All Council was satisfied with where the budget was sitting.
- 3. Discuss Connex Fiber Groundbreaking:** There was a discussion on the ground being dug up for the fiber going in. Director Monroe stated the majority of the fiber will be installed aerially not underground. He informed Council he has asked Connex to put a drop at each of our parks for future use. Council Member Macfarlane asked if the City is opting in to fiber.

Director Monroe said no, this is participation for the residents. Recorder Supp informed Council Connex would like to have a groundbreaking ceremony in conjunction with a Council Meeting day so residents who come to Council may also want to come to their ceremony. Connex suggested June 6<sup>th</sup> at 5:30pm. Mayor Madsen asked what ground they will break. Recorder Supp said it will primarily be a photo op to stand in front of the marquee, they will notify the press and have questions and answers. All Council was fine with the groundbreaking before the next meeting.

4. **Discuss Utah Water Savers Program / Flip Your Strip:** Mayor Madsen started to explain the flip your strip program, Recorder Supp interjected with notifying Council there is more than flip your strip, there is also the landscape lawn exchange. She explained HB121 the legislature is allocating money to these programs for residents to make their yard more water saver friendly. The residents who participate will be able to get a kickback of \$2.50 per square foot if they take advantage of the landscape lawn exchange program. Council Member Wiggill asked what the City needs to do to qualify. Recorder Supp informed Council the City needs to adopt a new landscape ordinance; in which no more than 35% of the front and side yard area in new residential development cannot be grass and restricting lawn in park strips in areas with widths less than 8 feet. Recorder Supp said if you have already started landscaping you cannot participate. Recorder Supp said the Council needs to decide if they want to participate in the program. She informed Council a representative from Weber Basin will come to Council to explain the programs. They all agreed they would like someone to come as soon as possible.
5. **Discuss Scorekeepers Nest Options:** Director Monroe said with the new Jr. High construction he would like to know the future plans of the scorekeepers nest in Central Park. The cost to renovate would be significant, the future sidewalk will be 250 feet away from home plate so he is wondering if it is worth renovating or tearing down. Council Member Macfarlane indicated she feels the scorekeepers nest is a nice icon for the City, it has a function to serve the park and it is traditional. She does not want to see it torn down. Council Member Wiggill asked if the school is using part of it for storage, Director Monroe said no there was not enough room. Council Member Wiggill asked Director Monroe to take a wild guess on when the last time the scorekeepers nest was used. Director Monroe shared with Council 9 years ago when he first started Clinton City used it for a once a week league and that was the last time it has been used. Council Member Bangerter said the Council has two options to restore it or tear it down; his thought is the future of Central Park is commercial at some point. In order to rejuvenate it the cost would be around \$60,000-\$80,000 and to tear it down would be more around \$20,000. Council Member Bangerter said to watch during Fun Days how many people go to the building because they think there is a bathroom there. He said it does have potential to be renewed so people can rent it out, concessions could be sold out of it, the Police could use it as a perch during Fun Days and we could make a little bit of money. He said it does not good as it is in its current state so we need to decide what happens. Council Member Macfarlane said she thinks it is an icon and needs to be redone. Council Member Wiggill said nobody is using it that is why we are having this discussion; it is a waste of \$60,000. He feels there is no need for the facility in the park. We don't have

**Sunset City Corporation**  
**City Council Minutes**  
**May 16, 2023**  
**Page 9 of 9**

sports in Sunset and the one time a year we have an event in the park and people go there looking for a bathroom is not a good reason to spend that much money. Council Member Macfarlane said the City is getting younger families in our community; there could be enough room for slow pitch baseball. Director Monroe said we do not want the responsibility of a ball hitting a car with only 25 feet. Council Member Wiggill and Smalling are in favor of demolishing the facility. Council Member Rigley will do what the experts feel is best. Council Member Bangerter is undecided; he would like figures for the price of the options. Council Member Macfarlane is against tearing down the scorekeepers nest. Director Monroe said his frustrations are kids go and break the glass so he has started using plywood because the kids don't care. They are doing it with the bathrooms as well; he has had to remove all the partitions in the bathrooms because they are tearing down the doors. Now each bathroom is a single bathroom instead of multi, the kids are destroying brand new bathrooms. Council Member Bangerter asked if the City could possibly take advantage and piggy back off of the construction going on with the Jr. High. Council Member Macfarlane stated the scorekeepers nest could be used for other things, it would be great for a Police perch, it is an icon in the City and she strongly feels the Jr. High would utilize it.

Council Member Wiggill made a motion to move into a closed session at 8:31 pm. Council Member Rigley seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously with Council Members Bangerter, Macfarlane, Rigley, Smalling and Wiggill voting yes.

Council Member Bangerter made a motion to move out of the closed session and adjourn. Council Member Rigley seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously with Council Members Bangerter, Macfarlane, Rigley, Smalling and Wiggill voting yes. Closed session minutes are attached.

The meeting adjourned at 9:16 p.m.

Approved – June 20, 2023

---

D Howard Madsen, Mayor

---

Nicole Supp, Recorder